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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
SAKUMA EXPORTS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of SAKUMA EXPORTS
LIMITED, (*the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315! March, 2024, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of changes
in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2024, its Profit
including other comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 31! March, 2024, These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1. Assessment of impairment of investment in
subsidiaries,

(Refer Note 5 of the Standalone Ind AS Balance
Sheet)

As at 31% March, 2024 the Company balance sheet
includes investment in subsidiaries & associates of
Rs. 2,224 64 lakhs,

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-
AS), the management has allocated these balances
to their respective cash generating units (CGU) and
tested these for impairment using a discounted cash
flow model. The management compares the carrying
value of these assets with their respective
recoverable amount. A deficit between the
recoverable amount and CGU's net assets would
result in impairment. The inputs to the impairment
testing model which have most significant impact on
the model includes:

a) Sales growth rate;

by) Operating margin;

c) Working capital requirements;

d) Capital expenditure; and

&) Discount rate applied to the projected cash flows.
The impairment test model includes sensitivity testing
of key assumptions.

The annual impairment testing is considered a
significant accounting judgment and estimate and a
key audit matter because the assumptions on which
the tests are based are highly judgmental and are
affected by future market and economic conditions
which are inherently uncertain, and because of the
materiality of the balances to the financial statements
as a whaole.

As a part of our audit we have, carried out the
following procedures:

a) We assessed the Company's methodology applied
in determining the CGUs to which these assets are
allocated.

b) We assessed the assumptions around the key
drivers of the cash flow forecasts including discount
rates, expected growth rates and terminal growth
rates used.

c) We also assessed the recoverable value by
performing sensitivity testing of key assumptions
used.

d) We tested the arithmetical accuracy of the models

e) Performed analysis of the disclosures related to the
impairment tests and their compliance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind-AS).

2. Revenue Recognition (Refer to the accounting
policies in Note 2 to the financial statements)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon
the transfer of control of the goods to the customer.
The Company uses a variety of shipment terms
across its operating markets, and this has an impact
on the timing of revenue recognition. There is a risk
that revenue could be recognised in the incorrect
period for sales transactions occurring on and around
the year-end, therefore revenue recognition has been
identified as a key audit matter.

a) Our audit procedures included reading the
Company's revenue recognition accounting
policies to assess compliance with Ind AS 115
“Revenue from contracts with customers”.

b) We performed test of controls of management’s
process of recognizing the revenue from sales of
goods with regard to the timing of the revenue
recognition as per the sales terms with the
customers,

c) We performed test of details of the sales
transactions testing based on a representative
sampling of the sales orders to test that the related
revenues and trade receivables are recorded
taking into consideration the terms and conditions
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Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

of the sale orders, including the shipping terms.

d) We also performed audit procedures relating to
revenue recognition by agreeing deliveries
occurring around the year end to supporting
documentation to establish that sales and
corresponding trade receivables are properly
recorded in the correct period.

e) Assessing and ftesting the adequacy of
presentation and disclosures.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors report but does not include the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemnative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral.

# Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concenm.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

‘_:?

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 31#t
March 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the order); issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure - A, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone IND AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant Rules issued thereunder.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure - B.

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 315t March 2024 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statement — Refer Note No. 39.

b. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts,

c. There is no amount to be transferred to the Investor Education Undertaking Protection Fund by the
Company.

d. (ijThe Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (‘Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
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(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(iijThe Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds {which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entity (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

- (i) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the
year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

(ii) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject
to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend
proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with,

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

For M. L. Sharma & Co,

TP Firm Reg. No. 109963W
PoRNARM Chartered Accountants
¥ st % v
Tl fmlgiy SOX ‘
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Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date : 30t May 2024

(Jinendra D. Jain)

Partner

Membership No. 140827
UDIN: 24140827BKGWUH1039
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of SAKUMA EXPORTS LIMITED

on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2024, We report that:

1a

1b

1c

1d

1e

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of Right-of-Use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

As explained to us, the Property, Plant and Equipment of the company have been physically verified
by the Management in a phased manner as per regular program of verification, which in our opinion is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. Pursuant to this
program, some of the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year, and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable property (Except leasehold properties) accordingly
provision of clause i(c) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant, and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets during the year.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

a. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for
inventories lying with third parties. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is
reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate and no discrepancies
of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed. Inventories lying with third
parties have been confirmed by them as at 31 March, 2024 and discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed in respect of such confirmations.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has made investments only in its
wholly owned subsidiary company which prima facie is not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security in respect of any loans to any party covered
under section 185 of the Act. In respect of Investments made in body corporate by the Company, the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public to which the directives issued by the

Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 and any other relevant provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under apply.
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6. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is not
required to maintain cost records specified by the central government under section 148 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

7a  According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund dues, employees state insurance, income tax, service tax, sales tax,
service fax, custom duty, excise duty, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities and there are no undisputed amounts payable for the same were outstanding as at 31st
March, 2024 for a period exceeding six months from the date they became payable;

7b  According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, the Particulars of disputed statutory dues under various act as at 31¢! March, 2024 which have
not been deposited with the appropriate authorities are as under:

Name of the Statute Nature of dues Amount | Forum where dispute is

(in Lakhs) | pending
(Rs.)

Income Tax Act, 1961 | For A. Y. 2008-10 2.13 | Jurisdictional AO
Income Tax Act, 1961 | For A. Y. 2012-13 173.80 | CIT (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | For A. Y. 2013-14 # 46.95 | CIT (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | For A. Y. 2014-15 # 119.18 | CIT (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | For A. Y. 2015-16 # 25.51 | CIT (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | For A.Y. 2016-17 # 384.43 | CIT (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | For AY. 2017-18 # 298.01 | CIT (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | For AY. 2018-19 # 125.98 | CIT (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | For AY. 2019-20 # 21.49 | CIT (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | TDS Defaults for various years 0.99 | TDS Officer, Mumbai
The Central Sales Tax | For F.Y. 2014-15# 371.12 | Deputy Commissioner of State
Act, 1956 Tax, CST Appeals
The Central Sales Tax | For F.Y. 2015-16 # 232.46 | Deputy Commissioner of State
Act, 1956 Tax, CST Appeals =
The Central Sales Tax | For F.Y. 2016-17 # 200.26 | Deputy Commissioner of State
Act, 1956 Tax, CST Appeals

# net of payments made

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

a. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest to any lender during the year.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or government authority.
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10.

11

12.

13.

c. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no term loans were
taken during the year. In respect of the term loans which were taken in the previous years, those were
applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

f. According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries.

a. The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

a. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any
such case by the Management.

b. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the
Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

c. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any whistle- blower complaints during the

year.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required under Ind AS "24", Related Party Disclosures specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015.

T
P
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14.

1.

16.

17.

18.

18.

a. Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b. We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued fill date for the period under
audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any Non-Cash transaction with directors or persons connected with the directors.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

a. The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b. The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

c. The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

d. Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 36 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up fo the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For M. L. Sharma & Co,
Firm Reg. No. 109963W

Chartered Accountants
j- LT~ C&—Q'P
Place of Signature: Mumbai (Jinendra D. Jain)
Date : 301 May 2024 Partner

Membership No. 140827
UDIN: 24140827BKGWUH1039

Page 11 of 13




ANNEXURE - “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
The Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of SAKUMA EXPORTS LIMITED
for the year ended 31! March, 2024, We report that:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SAKUMA EXPORTS LIMITED, (“the
Company") as of 31s March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
infarmation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemnal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control
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over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31= March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M. L. Sharma & Co,
Firm Reg. No. 109863W
? “J Chartered Accountants

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date : 30t May 2024

(Jinendra D. Jain)

Partner

Membership No. 140827
UDIN: 24140827BKGWUH1039
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Sakuma Exports Limited
CIN: LE1908MH2005PLE 155765
Standalone Balance Shest as at March 31,2024
Tin Lakhs
ASSETS
1 |MNon-current assets
[8) Property, plant end equipmeant 3 ET.04 24563
{2} Right-of-use Assal 48.48 10144
[} Infangible assals q . 0.43
[d} Financsal Assals
(i) Ivvestmant In Subsdianies 5 222454 22153
i) vvesslrnent - Cehars ] - 28]
[iii} Leans, Advances and Deposits ) B7.38 759.08
[} Cther Non - Curment Assets 8 462.75 1048
{T} Deffered Tax Assets (Met} 34 119.47 139.48
3,029.75 280373
2 |Current assats
(&) Inventones g 11,935.46 1118831
{b} Financial Assels
{i) Trade racalvadles 10 20,8328 15,073 66
{ily Cash and cash equivaiants 1" 151575 175234
i} Balances with Bariks cther than (i) sbove 12 .58 32620
{iv) Envastrnand - Cihers 1 . 300,68
1¥] Loars, Advances and Deposils 7 1,728.05 B51.23
i) Cither financial assels 14 B7.78 .
ic) Other curant assets 15 880019 TEG323
(0] Incame Tax (Wat of Provisions) 16 240.87 18882
45,240.59 3047 57
TOTAL - ASSETS (A} 4827034 30.851.30
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Shareholder's funds
(&) Equily Share Capil 17 2,345.59 2.345.59
(k) Cthar Equiy 18 26,758.83 2528447
20,104 42 2763006
2 |Mon-currant abilities
{4} Financial Liabdifias
[1) Long Term Bomowings 18 - 76.52
{ii} Lease Liabslities 20 w’N MES
(B} Long term Provisions A §5.04 L]
131.85 249
3 |Current lizbilities
{2} Financial Liakililies
{ih Barrowings 22 9,868.583 157513
{ll} Trada payables 4
1@} folaf culstanding diss of mecn enlarprises and small enlemrisas B8 1,283 68
il::ﬂ:iﬁn;t;rmmﬂcm alher than mign enderprises 1.626.08 2 782,00
[i§]) Oihier financiat kabiities 4 2284 e
(b Cthear curent lishiities 25 TATEAE £.285.33
|ic} Current Provisions il 20.04 1679
19,033.97 12.018.75
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (B) 48.270.34 385130
Corpaorate Infermation & Significant Accounting Policies 182
The accompenying notes farm an imegral part of the slandsione financial stalemants -
A% par our repor of even dale
For M.LSHARMA & CO. Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants |
FRN: 103363W X
{sR%7 4
-;1 - Mr. Saufabh Malhotra
. Chairman & Managing Director
Jinandra D. Jain DIN - 00214500
Partnar g‘
M. No. 140827 @a" oW _a
Place : Mumbal Khyatl Jobznputra iaﬁ’é];l.jlr:hm
Data : May 30, 2024 Company Sacratary Chief Financlzl Olficer




Sakuma Exports Limited
CIN: L51903MH2005PLC 155765
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the preiod ended March 31, 2024
Tin Lakhs
TR [T s | e " tenal  Fortheyearended | Fortheyearended
SRR Rae T F - Faltichats i W= [NoteNo| "y ot 208 | Marchot 2029
1 |Revenue from operations 26 187,430.04 285, 587.03
2 |QOther income 2 1,065.63 724,94
3 |Total revenue (1+2) 188,485.67 286,311.97-
4 |Expenses
(a) Purchases of Stock-in-trade 179,318.03 255.704.32
(b} Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 28 (748.15) (3,056.25)
(c) Employse benefits expense 29 720.06 626.24
(d) Finance costs H 381.49 673.11
(&) Depreciation and amortisation expenses KN 116.34 145.17
{f] Other expenses 32 6,422.29 28,857 .54
Total expenses 186,220.06 282.950.14
§ |Profit | (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (3 - 4) 227561 3,961.83
6 |Exceptional items . :
7 |Profit! {Loss) befare tax (5 +/- 6) 2,275.61 3,361.83
§ |Tax expense: 33
(a) Current tax 585.69 B84 66
(b} Prior period tax 23.99 1.56-
(c) Defarred tax 33,68 .73
Total Tax Expenses 643,35 957.95
9 |Profit/ (Loss) for the Year (7 - 8) 1,632.25 240388
10 |Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss
Remeasurements gains/(losses) on definad benefit plans (7.70) 12,74
Income tax relating to above 1.94 (3.21)
Total Other Comprehensive Income transferred to P&L (5.76) 8.53
ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss
Remeasurements gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge 22.28 68.56
Income tax relating to above {5.61) {17.33)
16.67 5153
Total Other Comprehensive transferred to reserve (16.67) {51.53)
11 |Total Comprehensive Income for the year(3+10) 1,626.49 241341
12 |Eamings per share (Face Value of ¥ 1/ each): 4
{a) Basic 0.69 1.03
{b) Diluted 0.69 1.03
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 142
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standslons financial statements
As per our report of even date
For M.L.SHARMA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 109963W
A 4
. Mr. Saurabh Malhotra
dJinendra D. Jain Chairman & Managing Director
Partner DIN - 00214500 K’
M. No. 140827 @Wpﬁ g%;‘,/
Place ; Mumbai Khyati Jobanputra sh Mishra
Date : May 30, 2024 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer




Sakuma Exports Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit Before Tax 2,27561 3,361.83
Adjustme before tax fo net
Depreciation and amortisation 116.34 14517
Finance costs 351,49 67N
Interest income {140.08) (14.37)
Pravision for Doubdful Dabts (2.68) (14.03)
Profit from Sales of Property, Plant & Equipment (314.28) {3.52)
Met {gain) ( loss on sale ! fair valuation of investments (412.98) [415.15)
Oparating profit [ (loss) banm waorking capital changes 181342 7324
Chan cal
Ad increage I d in ing assets:
Inventories (T4B.15) {3,056.25)
Trade receivables (5,757.18) 14, 140,27
Loans, Advances and Deposits - Current {1,076.82) a0
Loans, Advances and Deposits - Mon Current (7.57) {538.14)
Other financial assets {67.78) 623.92
Other curent assets {1,373.54) 23328
Balancas with Banks other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 299.62 in
Cther non-current assels (382.31) 2.5
nts for | crease) In ope ilities:
Trade payables (2,429.61) {1,742.81)
Oiher Financial Fzbifties (33.15) [46.52)
Cither current liabilities 118315 {5,70%.57)
Current Provision 12.25 -
Cther Provision 226 18.38
Long-term provisions (3.96)
Tatal (B,439.39) 8,762,468

L activities (A}

563,57

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expendilure on fixed assets, including capital advances
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
FRight to use assets
Currant investments not considered as Cash and cash equivalents
- Purchased
- Proceeds from sale
Stebscription to equity shares in Subsidiary

AR

(5.00)
415,00

(39,597.40)
40,313.66

{4.16)

(61,119.45)
ﬁf.zss 89

(6,824.01)
(673.11)
(77.65)
117.5




Sakuma Exports Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

T in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
Piticuare March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet
Cash end cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer Note 1 1}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 151475 175234
* Comprisas:
(a) Cash on hand 0.15 518
(b} Balances with banks
i} In current accounts 165.60 1,747.18
{11} In Depesit Accounts 1,350.00 -
1.515.75 1,752.34

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standsione fnancial staiemants.
Motes:
(i} The above Cash Flow Statemant has been prepared under the *Indirect Methad “as set cut in the Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 *Cash Flow Statement®.

As per our report of even date
For M.L.LEHARMA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

|Chartered Accountants s Ay
FRN: 109963W i -

Jinendra 0. Jain i; 2 e Mr. Saurabh Malhotra
Partner LN Chairman & Managing Director
M. No. 140827 RO ACK DIN - 00214500
Flace : Mumbai iéyatl Jobanputra Mishra
{Date ; May 30, 2024 : Company Secretary  Chisf Financial Officar
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SAKUMA EXPORTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note Particulars
1 |Corporate information

Sakuma Exports Limited ("The Company"), a Government of India recognised Star Trading House, is a public limited company domiciled
in India and incorporated on August 31, 2005, CIN - L51909MH2005PLC155765. The registered office of the company is located at 301-A,
Aurus Chambers, S8 Amrutwar Lane, Near Mahindra Tower, Worli, Mumbai - 400013. The shares of the company are listed on Bombay
Stock Exchange{BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE). The company is engaged in trading of Agro Commadities and caters to both
domestic as well as international markets.
Authorisation of Financial Statements: The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directars
on 30th May 2024,

2.1 |Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

22

43

24

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS') as
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the other relevant provisions of the Act and rules thereunder.

The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention basis except

a. Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policies for financial instruments).

b. Defined Benefils plans —Plan assets measured at Fair Value

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements except where a newly issued
Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto
in use.

Material Accounting Policies
Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, requires management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surmounding the estimates.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Fair Value Remeasurements:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a fiability in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumption that market participants would use when
pricing an asset or liability acting in their best economic interest. The Company used valuation techniques, which were appropriate in
circumstances and for which sufficient data were available considering the expected loss/ profit in case of financial assets or liabilities.

Cash Flow Statements:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of
fransactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are

segregated.

5

Proj Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition of
the concemed assets and are further adjusted by the amount of Input Credit of taxes availed wherever applicable.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet date are disclosed as "Capital work-in-
progress”,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of asset,




SAKUMA EXPORTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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2.7

2.8

2.9

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the Asset. The Property, plant and equipment's residual values and useful
lives are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and changes, if any, are treated as changes in accounting estimate.

The Company has applied principles of Ind AS 16 refrospectively from date of acquisifion and considered the same as deemed cost in
accordance with Ind AS 101 First Time adoption, On transition to Ind-AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of
intangible assets recognised as at April 01, 2016 measured as per IGAAP as the deemed cost of assets.

The estimated useful lives considered of Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company are as follows:

Wind Turbine Generators 22 Years

Leaseheld Land Shorter of lease period or estimated useful lves
Plant and Equipment 25 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Computer software 3 Years

Vehicles 8 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. ltems of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated in a manner that amortizes the cost (or other amount substituted for cost) of the assets, less its residual value, over their useful
lives as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 on a written down value basis except Lease Hold Land cn which straight line
basls depreciation is charged,

Investments

Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments are
made ,are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as non current investments.

Long-term investments (excluding investment properties), are carried individually at cast less provision for diminution, other than temporary,
in the value of such investments. Current investments are carried individually, at the lower of cost and fair value. Cost of investments
includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are camied at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the
carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in
subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the camying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Upan first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected lo measure its investments in subsidiaries at the Previous GAAP carrying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS L., April 01, 2016,

Leases

Cperating Lease:

Company as Lessee - Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item,
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight
line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, elc. are recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

210

21

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchase,
and other cost incurred in bringing the goods to the present location and condition.
The cost is determined using the First in First Out Basis (FIFO) .

Cash & Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash
equivalents.




SAKUMA EXPORTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and
deferred tax are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Current Tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities based on the taxable income for that pericd. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

- has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and

- Intends either to settle on & net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized for the future tax consequences of deductibie temporary differences between the camying values of assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases at the reporing date, using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on
reporting date.

Deferred tax assels are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits can be utilized.

Defered tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

- Entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

- Deferred tax assets and the defered tax liabilifies relate to the income taxes levied by the same taxation authority,

Financial Assets

{a) Initial recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of Financial assels which are recognised at falr value through profit
and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are atfributed to
the acquisition value of the financial asset. However, Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured
at transaction price.

(b} Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets. The Company classifies
financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or
lass on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characleristics of the financial asset

() Debt Instruments
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contraciual cash
flows, and
- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methed,
Amortised costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amoriisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The losses ansing from impairment are recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss,

(ia) Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the fair value through other comprehensive income if both the following conditions are met:
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets
- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, these assets are subsequently measured &t fair value. Interest income under effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive Income.
(ib) Debt instruments at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Fair value through profit or loss is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria far
categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL
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2.15

(ii) Equity Instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at FVOCI or FVTPL, The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is imevocable,

For equity instruments classified as FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in other
comprehensive income (OC),

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit &
Loss.

(c) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when:

(i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(i) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred contral of the
asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the Business
environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit rigk.

Income Recognition

Interest Income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs that are attributable to the respective liabilities.
Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial liabilities.

The measurement of Financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(i) Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-trading or is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognised in| -
Statement of Profit & Loss.

{ii) Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (‘EIR").

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference In the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable| -
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

2.16

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based on market

canditions and risks existing at each reporting date.
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Fair Value Hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

- Level 3 : Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current:

All assels and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle {determined at 12 months) and
other criteria set out in Schedule Il of the Act,

A. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring
them to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price (which is the consideration, adjusted to discounts, incentives and returns, etc., if any)
that is allocated to that performance cbligation, These are generally accounted for as variable consideration estimated in the same period
the related sales occur. The methodology and assumptions used to estimate rebates and returns are monitored and adjusted regularty in the
light of confraciual and legal obligations, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions.

Revenue from sale of products and services are recognised at the fime of satisfaction of performance cbligation. The period over which
revenue is recognised is based on entity's right to payment for performance completed. In determining whether an enfity has right to
payment, the enfity shall consider whether it would have an enforceable right to demand or retain payment for performance completed to
date if the contract were to be terminated before completion for reasons other than entity's fallure to perform as per the terms of the contract.

218.2

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflects
company's unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time}. Trade receivables are recognised
initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components,

The company helds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash fliows and therefore measures them
subsequenily at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

(b} Other income
Export Incentives under various schemes are accounted in the year of export,

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount cutstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividends are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured raliably.

219

Foreign currency Translations

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company's functional and presentation currency, All amounts have
been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated,

Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.
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Monetary ltems

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly
attributable fo the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of assets.

Non - Monetary ltems

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange rates at the date
of the transaction.

Employee benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity fund and compensated absences.

{a) Defined contribution plans
The Company’s contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense as they fall due
based on the amount of contribution required to be made.

(b) Defined benefit plans
Defined Benefit Plan i.e. gratuity is recognised on accrual basis based on the actuarial valuation in accordance with the requirement of Ind
AS 19,

Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approve gratuity fund, which fully covers the same under Cash
Accumulation Policy and Debt fund of the PNB Met Life Insurance Company Ltd. However, any deficit in plan assets managed by PNB
Met Life Insurance as compared to the liability on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation is recognized as a liability. The liability or
asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method in conformity with the principles and manner of computation specified in Ind AS 19. The net interest cost is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
included in empioyee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.21

2.23

(c) Privilege leave entitiements

Privilege leave entitlements are recognized as a liability, in the calendar year of rendering of service, as per the rules of the Company. As
accumulated leave can be availed and/or encashed at any time during the tenure of employment, subject to terms and conditions of the
scheme, the liability is recognized on the basis of an actual working based on balance days of accumulated leave.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost directly attributable to development of qualifying assets are capitalized till the date qualifying assets is ready for put to use
for its intended purpose as part of cost of that assets .Other borrowing cost are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the period by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The number of shares used in computing diluted eamings per share
comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic eamnings per share, and also the weighted average number of equity
shares which could be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.24

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying values of assets/cash generating unit at each Balance Sheet date are reviewad for impairment. If any indication of impairment
exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognized, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds
their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and therein value in use. Value in use is arrived at
by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor, When there is indication than an
impairment loss recognized for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except in case of revalued assets.
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2.25

Provisions

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can
be reliably estimated.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance
cost.

2.26

Contingent Liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not
require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there
is & possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

2.27

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise Judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies.

The estimates and judgements involves a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed .Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes.

Critical estimates and judgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
a. Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

b. Estimated useful life of Intangible assets

c. Estimation of defined benefit obligation

d. Estimation of Provisions and Contingencies

g, Estimation of Incremental Borrowing rate —Leases
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Netes to the Standalone financlal statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
Mote 4 : Intangible assets

T in lakhs

‘fear Ended 31 March, 2024

Gross Carrylng Amount

Opening Grass Carylng Amounl as al 181 Apil, 2022 967 847
Addifianz during the yesr * -
Disposais/Deductions /Agjusiments 2.67)) {0.67)
Clesing Gross Carrying Amount . *
Accumulated Ameortisation

Opening Accumulaled Amortsation 818 918
Amarisation chergs for the yeer .48 0.48
DisposaisiDeductions (Adjusimanis (9.7} [9.67)
|Closing Accumulated Amortisation = .
[Claging Net Carrying Amaunt - .
Year Ended 318t March, 2023

Gross Carrying Amount

Cpening Gross Carrying Amaunt 962 G962
Additions during the year 045 008
DizposalsDeductions ttdjustmants . -
Closing Gross Carrying Amaunt 97 967
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment

Opening Accumnulabed Amarlisasion Bg2 a0
Amarisation Charge for ha yaar nzr 0.zr
DisposaisDeductions Adusiments = .
Clesing Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment 9.19 919
|Clesing Het Carrying Amaunt .48 (.48
* Compuser Saftware includes expendiiure oo compular ssftware which is not &n integral pant of hardware

- i in Sub

Investments in Equity Insirument of Subsidiaries (At cest):

iniits

Unquoted equity Shares Non-Trade

{3} Shares of Sakuma Exim DMCC, UAE 7.01 T
(50 {March 31, 2023 : 50} equity sharas OF AED 1,000 sach |

[b} Sharas of Sakuma Exports Pia Limited, Sngapone 21752 221752
(402,530 (March 31, 2023 - 402,530) equity shares of USD 1 each)

{c) Shares of Sakuma impax Limited, UK 0.1 -
110 (March 31, 2023 ; ML) equity shares of GBP 10 sach )

Total 220464 2,224 53

- Investment in Gakd Band [Refer nola [1)]

Tin lakhs

Total Investment Others




Hote:
{i) The company |s the registerad holdar of 100unils of the Soversign Goid bands baaring Interest at the rale of 275% pua, payable & half yeary inlervals
BVENY Y.

Gecurity deposils - 1o related parfias [ Refer Nole (1) |

Secunty depasis - 1o ofers [ Refar Nata (7] ] 521

Loans and Advancas o Employess 139.04 40,85

Less: Prowigion for doubtful Loans . {40.85)
1,728.05 E7.36

Unsecured, considered Doubtiul

Dipesits with Others . 13.84

Leans and Advances 1o Others % .

Less: Provisien for doubtiul deposits (13.84)

Total Loans Advances & Deposits 1,728.08 87.36

Security deposils - o related parliss | Rafer Motz 1) | - 4.5
Security deposils - 1o others | Ratar Nota (] ] BGN 4.7
Loans and Advancas bo Empioyeas 10202 471
Les= Prosision for doubtful Loens - [#7.21)
851.23 7008
Ungecured, considered Doubtiul
Deposits with Olhars 1294
Lioang and Advances b Others - =
Lass: Provision for doubthd deposits - {13.94)
Total Leans Advances & Deposits 51,23 TE.08 |

(1) Sub Classification of Loans & Advances

F
I

Loans Receivabias considared good - Unsecured 1,728.05 8736
Il.nans Receivablas which have significant Increase in Crad Risk; and . a

Loans Reosvabias - cradi impaired . 13.34
Total 1,728.05 101.30
Liss: Alwance for Doubtiul Logns . {13.84)
Total Leans & Advances 1,728.05 B7.36

[TLF™ ey ___.........

Loans Recaivables considered good - Unsecured B51.23 7908
Loans Recaivables which have sipnificant incraasa in Credil Risk; and - %
Logns Recaivables - credil impained R 1344
Total 51,23 93,02
Less: Allpwanca for Doubtiul Laans 7 T
Total Loans & Advances 651.23 T8.08

Rafer Note no:-46 for information about credit risk and market risk factars




Fair \alug of Plan Assets - Gratulty 157 1006
income accried Bul not Due 5938 040
Capile Atvance 38940 '
Unsecured considered doubtiul

Advance racevabla in kind or for valug 10 be recelved 9319 4819
Less: Provision for doubitfd balances #8.19) {88.19)
Total Othor Non Currant Assats 46275 | 1045

13,1885

Total Inventories

11,168.31

- For dalails of mvenionies given &5 security 10 lenders refer Nole 22

2083281

s

Trade Receivables consdered good — Unsecured 15,073 66
Trade Recaivables having significant Increase in Cradi Risk: and 1391 40.54
Trade Recaivables - credil impaired - .
Total 20,846.72 15,114.20
|Less : Allowanos for expected ored loss {12.81) 40 54)
Total Trade Receivables 2083251 1507365
Curment Portion 2083281 15,073.66
on - Current Portion F z

{l} Trade receivabias are nan inferes| bearing in nalue, Tha company mainlaing the policy of dispaiches against payments excepl in case of merchant

frade fransactions, wherein the lems of payment is six months.

{i} The above Trade Raceivables & hypothecaled o banks against Cash Credit and Packing Credt faclilies (Refer note no. 22)

(i) Refer Mote no .34 for ageing & 44 for infarmafion about credit sk and markes nsk faclors.

Eualance with bariks hald as masgin money deposits against QD facifity
Cazh on Hand

Total Cash and Cash Equivalants

Total Cther Bank Balances

1752.34 1
Balance with banks neld as margin mengy depesils againgt guaranies 2240 3?1:313
26.56 32650




Note -13 :Jm

Investment (At Fair valus through profit and loss)
Unquoted
- Investment in Mutual Funds

Aggregale amount of guoted invesiment 21 market value
Agomegale amount of wnguoted invesimenls
hagregale emound of Impalmment in value of Invesiments

Less: Aliowsnce for Doubitful Recelvabias

Tatal Other Financial Assets

B7.78

18] Advence recovarsble in cash or king 718318 3665.79
(b Prepaid expanses 4654 £3.85
(c} Advancs to Employeas 00s i
|[¢i] Security Deposit o Cthers 840 B.A0
i) Inceme Receivable 65.55 E5.56
() Balancas with gavesnmant autharifies -
- Export Incenfives Recelvatle 39.85 70.34
- Sales lax Deposit raz irn
- GET Autnonties 1,487.02 288075
(g1 B5T Craci Receivabie - T2x%
|% Fair Valua of Forward Contract 2138 G8.B6
otal Other Current Assets £,890.18 7.563.23

preat 1

% in lakhs

I'I'uuicumml‘u Asspst

40,00,00,000 equity sharss of ¥ 1 each (40,00,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 1 each)

e AT

L
b - e ¥ )
"\-..frﬁlﬁ" |';'-_:;‘__';-"'




Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up
23,435,595 430 equity shares of T 1 each (23,45,55,420 equity shames of T 1 aach)

234559

£,345.59

Shares cutstanding al he eginning of the

Shares |ssued during Lha yaar

Shanes bought back duing the year

Shares outstanding at the end of he year

[ Snares outsianding al e beginning of e yesr

Shares |ssued during Ihe year

Sharas bought back during the vear

Sheres outstanding at he end of the year

¢) Terms | rights attached fo equity shares

i} Tne Company has one class of equity shares haning par velee of %1 per share, Each holder of ecuily shares is entiied Io ons voie par share Thae
company declares and peys oividend In Indian rupees. The dividend propased by the Bosrd of Directors is subject 1o appraval of the sharshalders in the
ensuing Annual General Maeting excap! in casa of Intedm Dividend,

i} I the event of liguidation of tha company, the holders of equity shares will ba enified o recalve remaining £2als of the company, afier distriousion of

all prefiareriial amaunts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of aguity shares held by the sharahaldars,

d). Detalls of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Mrs. Kusum Chander Mohan Melhotia 45,431,190 19.80%
M. Saurath Mahoka 32485077 13.85%

Wz Salama infrastructure and Realty Py Lud
W — onnm il T

Wis. Kusum Chander Mohan Melhotra

Wr. Saurabh Malhoira

13.85%

Mis Sakuma infrastructure and Realfy Pvi Lid

48,872,450

20.84%

(i) Az per racards of the company, Including register of shareholders and alher declarations recsived from sherenolders regarding banaficial inferast, Bie
above shareholding represants bof legal and baneficial awnerships of sheres.
SHRIRNN o OF Proscis -

Saurabh Manolia

Kuum Chandermichan Malhelra 45,431,190
Shipra Malhotra 5,000
\ianiilha Malhotra 10,350,000
Tarya Madiratia 5,320
Sakuma Firvest Pyt Lid £,967 200
Sakuma Infrastuciurs And Resly Private Limiled 48,872,450
[Tetal Shareholding 45,135,237




|

13.85%]
|Kusum Chencermahan Malhalra 45,431,180] 10.50%
Shipra Malhotra 50000 0.00%
Varitha Malhotra 10,350,a00] 441%
Tanya Mediratta 5.320] 0.00%
Sazkuma Finvest Pilid £.887.200] 2.58%|
Sakuma Infrastructure And Really Privale Limasd 48.672.450] 20.54%)]
|Total Sharehaiding 145,136,237 B1,80%
Equity : -
Saursbh Malholra . =
Kugum Chandesmanan Malhotra 4
Shigra Mahotra ,
Vanitha Mahotra -
Tenye Mediratla :
Sakumg Finvest Pyt Lid E
Sakume Infrastruchure And Really Private Limiled .
Total -

|a) Capital Redemption Resarve [Refer note (] ) /

b} Securies Pramium [Refar note (i) 8,545.43 8.545.43
|t Cash Flow Hedging Resarve [Refer note {ii]] 16,68 51.53
d} Relained Earnings {Rafer nots fiv)] 17,196.63 1568742
Tetal Dther Equity 26,758.83 2528047

|\Add | [Les=): Nat Effect of forelgn exchanps rete varations on hedging instruments outstanding af
I end of tha year

Closing Ealance




=

Add : Total Gomprebensive Income for the year aftar Lax 241342
Less : Dividend disiributed to equity shareholdars (¥0.05 per share) (117.28)
[CIuﬂ Ealance 17,196.63 | 1566742

Notas:

(1) The Company has trensferred amount from Salement of profit o loss o capital redemption reserve on fedampiion of prefarance shares issued by tha
company.

i} Securitiss premium is created on ihe premium on issue of shares. This same will be uSiised in sccordance with e provisiens of the Comperias Act
23

fiii} Restalned earnings rapresents profits that the Company has eamed tll March 31, 2024, less any lranslers to genaral resarve, dividands o alher
distriousions paid fo sharshoidens:

v} Cash Dividends pald on edquily shares declared and paid

i Cash dividend fo e year ended on March 31, 2024; € 005 par share (March 39, 2023: T g g
(.05 per share| ;
Closing Balance 117.28 1728 |

(i} The divicend proposad by the Board of Diractors is subjoct o approval of ée shareholdars i the ensuing Annugl General Mesaling excest in case of
Intarim Dividend and are no recognised as 2 liahily in the yaar in which |t i proposad.

Pravision for Gratuity 18.02
Tatal Long term Provisions

Frovision Far Banus .
Fronision For Gratulty .08 81,32
Tatal Long term Provisicns 15.79 91.32

* hien refer Mote Mo 41 of Employes Barefits




Tinaits

From banks
Cash Credit - BOM 207LE6
Cash Credit : indusing Bznk 48185
Cash Credil -Deutsche Bank 1477.48 .
Cash Credit -5WT Bank 2,520.00 133315
= PCFC -Deutsche Bank 198430 164.43
- 00 from ICICI Bank 130 %
|Curment Malurities of Long Termi Borrawings . 7785
Total Current Borrowings 9.868.53 157623
Nature of Security

i) The Company has entered inko the banking amangament for credt faclites with mutiple anks, (e, Bank of Maharashira, Indusind Bank, SV Co-aparabee Bank
Limitied, Deuslsche Bank and ICIC! Baric

a) Bank of Maharashtra: The credt tacilies comprses of Cash Coadit and Packing credil which & secured agains! Hypothecaton of invanfary, Book debts and
Cumant Assats of the compasy along with the collaleral security against Fieed Assets [otr than vehicks and Leasehald Land).
Credit FaciliSes for Bank of Maharashira iz repayable on demared and caries inberes! of 13.05% pa. ie. one yaar (RLLR) af the bank +3.25% + BSS 0.5%,

b Jindusind Bark: Tre credit faciilies comgrises ol Cash Credt and Packing cradit which B3 seciyred agenst Hypathecation of lnverdary, Boaks debls and Curmant
FAssets of 3 company in paripassy with other banks alang with the collatarsl securly againsd Credd Fastities from Indusind Bank i rapayable en demand asd cammes
inteest of 10.55 p.a. ie. one yeer Maximum Cost of Lending Rale [MCLR) af the bani i.e. 10.15%+ 0.80% PCFC

€] BVC Cocperative Bank Ltd: The cred lacliles comprises of Cash Credit and Packing crecit which I8 secured against Hypoecation of Invanlory, Boaks debts
and Currant Assets of the company i paripassu with ciher banks slong wilh the coliateral securiy against Fined Assats {oher than vehifes and Leasehcld Land)
[Lredil Faciltios from SWC Coaperative Bank LI i repayable oo demand and carmies inferest of 12.15 pa Le. (PLR-8.55%) of the bank e FLR T0.50PLR-10.20%)

d) Dwutsche Bank- The crecit faclites comprises of Cash Credt and Packing credit which is saeured against Hypothecation of Invantory, Books debis and Current
Assels of £ company in paripassy with other banks alang with the coliaeral security against Fined Assets {other than vahicles and Leaseheld Land) Credit Faciities
from Desstschi Bank i repayabie on demand and cames inbetes! of MBOR +3,50% par annum PCFC Creds fasillyy is repay on demand and camies inlanest rale of
RFR plus 2% an Faraign cumancy loans

&} ICICI Barik Ltd: Tha credit tacilites comprises af Chesdralt ity against Foed Deposit. Credil Faciites fom ICIC! Bank Lid is repayabée an demand and caries
nderestal 5.25% pa.

() holad outstanding dues of micro enterprizes and small entarprizas

(b ot outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises and small entamrisas
- Fram Ofhers 1,626.00

Total Trade Payables 1,636.08 4,085.69 !

(1) The abave mfarmalion has been provided as available with the company o he exien such parties coud b idantifisd on the basis of the information
evailabie wilh the Company raparding tha ststus of the supgliers undar the MSMED Act




Amcunt of intenast paid In terms of sectan 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enfarprisas Ac, 2005

Amcunts of paymant mace b the suppliers beyond the appoinied day during the year

Amount of interast dua and paysble for the period of dalzy in making payment but without adding Ihe|
interest specified under this Act

Amcunt of intenest accrued and remaning uapaid al the end of the year
Amount of furlher inferest ramaining dus and payable aven In tha
succeeding years, untl such date when the inleres! dues as above

are achuglly paid o the small anterpeise

* Desclosure of payable o vendors as defined under tha “Micn, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 20087 s based on th infsrmation
avaiable with the Company regarding the stalus of registrefion of such vendors under (he salt Act, as per the inlimation received from them on requests
mage by the Compary, There are no overdug principal amaonts | inferest payable amounls for delayed payments i such vendors at the Balance Shaet
dale. There ane no delays in paymant made o such supplers during the year or for eny earier years and accondingly thena & no intanes! paid or
culstanding terast in 1 regard in respect of peyment made during the year or on balance brouaht ferward fram previous year,

[ii} Trade peyabies are non-interest bearing and normatly sattled wilkin 120 days.
{l] Refir Note 35 for ageing anaiysis of creditors

Tetzl Other Financial Liabidities

T6.71

...._ i __ s
Advance From Customers - From Olhars

Oiher Qperating Revenue 383.09 635,17
Tolal Revanue from (:aaunuH Operations 167,430.04 285.587.03




T in lakhs

FRavenua from Oparations within e Country 76,562.58 124356.15
Fievenua rom Oparations outside tha Coundry 110.847.44 161230.63
Tetal 187, 430.02 28558703

Services transfamed over fima
Todal

Revenus as par Contracied Prices
Lizss | Sales Ratums, Discounts, Aebale stc.

Intarasl icomea

el gain on saa of Investiments 412.58 41515
Profit on zale of Property, Plant & Equipmant 3428 .
Mlark o Market gain on forward gain 13811 -
Hhar non-pperaling income 6013 54
inet of expensas direclly aitriugable to such inccme)

Total Other Income 1,065.63 72494

11,0881 BAX2.06
Total Opening Balances 11,188.31 B13206
|Clesing Balances
Finished Goods 11,936,458 19,163.31
Total Closing Balances 11,536.46 11,1E8.31
Total Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress {T4B.15), 13,055, 25)




Conributon To Prowdent Fung & Other Funde
Gratuity Expenses (Also Refer Nots Mo 41 of Emglayes Benefis

£ infakhs

G|

¥ intakhs

(er Finance Cost 11320 208.38
Finance Cost expensed In Prafit or Loss 391.48 67311

Amertizasion of Intangible Aszals

Tetal Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Powar and fual

Rant including lease rentals 1453 BOT
Repairs ard maintenance - Buiidings 0.80 1.03
Rapairs and mantenance - Machinery 0.43 2463
Fapairs and manienance - Cthers 019 33
Insiranca 45.26 6704
Rales and taxes - 0.90
Cammunication 9.85 1308
Travelling &nd conveyance 7.0 .44
Fraaght and forwerding B39.87 12177.50
Business promofion 10,84 16.28
Legal and prolessional 263,05 Fabi::]
(Paymants to audilors [Fefer Mole 323 beiow] 1222 wn
Teminal end Handling Charges 25323 96242
Ciher Clearing Chargas 49147 106134
Transport Chamges 3.860.61 12858.03
Warehouse Changes 2788 17763
Demurrage & Dalention Chargas . 1.2
Brakarage on Irading in Commadities & Securities Exchenge 9463 ar.sa
Lodging & Boarding 077 4.3
Corparate Social Responshiffies Expanses [Refar hiote 32 below)] 5g92 B
Direclors Sifling Fees 100 12,0
Merk-to-marked gain on lorward conlracts . GB4.T7
Miscallaneous Expanses 165.03 176.08
[Total Cther expenses 642220 28,857 54




Excass Amouni Spent during ihe Yesr
Excess Amount Caried Forward to ned yeer o edjust the sami againet Fubure Obligations
Amound dabited in te siziement of Profil & Loss Account

Mote 33 : Tax Expanses
R) A anis. resogni e in e Bt

Current year 5E5.50 Ba4.66
Short | { Excaess ) Praovisian of Taxation of Earlier Years 19 1.56
Deferred tax expense (B)

Crigination end reversal of iemporary differances 3368 M.
Tax expense recognised in the income statement (4+8) £43.38 857.95

Tax using the domestic lax rale (Cutrend ysar 25.168% and Previous Year 25 168%)

Tax effect of :

Tax effect of non deductible expenses / alowabie on payment basis
income Tax Incantives

Daductions under various sections of income Tax st

Effact of Taxalion of Capital Gaing

Othars

Tax expenses as per Slatement of Profit & Loss

ST

{1315

854.68

Eective tax rate
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Sakuma Exporis Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statemants

Wote No. 37: Operating Leases

f) The Company's lease asset primarily consist of leases for land and buildings for offices. Effective April 1, 2013, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases”
and applied the standard to all lease conbracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method. Consequently, the Company recorded the
lease Eabllity al the prasent value of the remaining lease payments discounted al the incremental borrowing rate as on the date of fransiion and has
measured right of use asset at an amount equal to lease liability adjusted for any refated prepaid and accrued lease payments previcusly recognised,

(ii) The folizwing is te surnmary of practical expedients slected on inilal appScation:

(a) Appliad a single dscount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assels in similar economic environment with a similar end date

(&) Applied the exemption not fo recognize right-of-use assets and liabililes for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of inilial application,

() Excluded the intial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset 2t the date of initizf application.

{d} Applied the praciical expedient by not reassessing whather @ confract is, or containg, a lease 2! the date of initial application. Instead agpfied the standards
only 1o contracts that weve previcusly identified as leases under Ind A3 17.

{2} Used hindsight in cetermining the kase term where fhe contract contained options to extend or terminate the lease

(i} Fellowing s carrying value of right of use assets recognised cn date of transiticn and the movements thereof during the year ended March 31, 2024
#in lakhs

A1 154.32

Total Right of Use on tha date of transition 101.41 154.32
Addiions during the year ¥ 3
Deletion during the year . .
Dapreciation of Right of use assets (refer note 31) [52.93) (52,91}
Closing Balance 4548 1141

{iv) The following is the camying value of lease Eability on the date of ransiton and movement thereof during the year ended March 31, 2024:

Fin lakhs

Cipening Balance 130,16
Additions during the year >
Finance cost accrued during the year 14.06
Deletions %
Payment of Lease Liahilities 163.00)
Closing Balance #1.22

Ih respect o non - cancellable operating lease, the future minimum lease menl as at Balance Sheet date is
% undar:
For a penod not later than one yvear 57.75 £3.00
For a pened later than one year and not later than five years - 57.75
For a patiod later than five years " s
| Tatal 5.75 120,75

(v} The matusity analysis of lease liabilities ara disciosed in Mote 46

{vi] Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was T 14.53 lakhs for the year ended Masch 31,2024

{vii] The Company does not face & significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabiliies as the current 2sssts are sufficent to meet the obligations relzied

10 lease liabilities &35 and when they fall due,




. Eamnings per are: (in

ing: Par share has been mmputad as under :

et Profit after tax attributable to the Equity Shareholders (¥ in Lakhs) 1,626.49 241341
Total Average No of shares Quistanding during the year 2,345.50 2,145.58
Weaghted Average Mo of shares Quistanding during the year 2,345.59 234550
Earnings per Share -Basic & Diluted | Face Value of ¥ 1/- per Sharg) 0.69 1.03 |

Note 39 Contingent lsblities and commitments (o the extent not provided for) _ . _____Tinlakhs

(i) Contingent liabilities

Direct and indirect taxation matters #

TOS Default 093 1.52
Income tax 1,197.48 1,305.08
Sales tax B03.84 803.84
[Claims against the Company not acknowladged as debts 216265 346167
# Net of Payments made

Note 40 Segment Reporting

qlﬁ company and is Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews agro business as the only segment and takes dacision based on the demand and
PPly In agre business. Thus, as per Ind AS 108, the business activities falls within a single primary segment Le, trading in Agn Products and accordingly
segment reparting is not applicable,




Sakuma Exports Limited
Kotes forming part of the standalone financial statements
Hote 41 Post-retirements benefit plan

| Defined contrib mp:

The group has recognised and included in Mote 20 “Contrizution fo Provident and ether funds® expenses lowards the defined contribution plan as under:

Conlrbution to Provident fund (Government) _

)

Dafined benefit plans
The group offers the following employes Benedit schemes 1o ils employess:
Gratuity

The greup has a defined benefit gratuity plan which is funded with an Insurance growp in the form of qualifying Insurance policy. The group's defined benefit gratuily plan is &
|salary plan for employees which requiras contributions to be made 10 a separate administrative fund.

The gratulty plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1872 Under the act, every employee who has completed five years of service gats a graluily on separation @
15 days of last drawn safary for each completed year of service rounded to nearest integer. The scheme is funded with an insurance group in the form of qualifying Insurance |
|eolicy.

The Management have appointed PNE MatLife to manage its funds. The management aim to keep annual contributions relatively stable at a level such that no plan deficits
(based on valuation parformed) will arize,

In case of death, while in service, the gratully Is payable Irespective of vesting, The group makes annual contributian to the group gratuity scheme administared by PNE
Il ife through its gratuity funds.

The disclosure in resgect of the defined Gratyi

{2) Net Assats | {Liability) of Defined Banefit Plans -

Prasent Value of Funded obligation 101.34 101.30
Fair value of plan assets 387 10.06
Net Asset/ [Liabity) recognised (37.37) 131.24)
[b) Change in present value of the defined benefil chligation e as folows -

Dpening Defined Benefit Obligation 101.31 7282
Segvice cost for the year 13.35 a5.4
Past gervica cost

Interest cost for the year T.28 G6.11
Benefils paid {17.20) P
Actuarial losses (gains) B.33 (13.56)
Closing defined benefit cbligation 113.08 1013
{c) Changes in Fair valua of Plan Assets during the year -

Opening fair value of plan assels 10.06 10.15
Expected return 0.47 0.73
Benefils paid {7.18) -
Actuarial gains and (losses) .62 {0LE2)
Closing balance of fund 3.47 10.06
(d) Expenses recognised during the period -

In Income Statament 20.15 41.1
In Other Comprehensive Incoms I (12.74)
Total Expenses recognised during the period 2785 28.57
|2} Amaunt recognised as expenses in the Stalement of Profit and Loss

Current Sarvice Cost 1335 35.54
Met Interest on net Defined Lisbility/| Assat) .80 537
Total 2015 41.11




(T Amount recognised as other comprehensive income the Statement of Profit and Loas

Actuarial gaing and (losses) {1.70) 12.74
|Return on plan assets, exclueding amount included in "Nal Interest on net Deferred Liabiliy/Assel) above 1.04 {3.21)
Total (5.76) 9,53
() Actuzl return g plan assets -

Expected retum on plan assets 0.47 0.73
Actuarial gain / {loss) on plan assets 0.62 {0.82)
Actual return on plan assets 1.09 {0.08)

(h) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuily and leave encashment for the group's plan are shown below:

Description of Risk Exposures -

Valuations ara performed on certain basic set of predetermined assumplions and other reguiatory frame wark which may vary overtime. Thus, the group is exposed 1o various
risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk
The plan exposes the group to the risk of all in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase In the ultimate cost of providing the above benedit and will thus
result in an increass in the value of the ligbility {2s shown in financial statements),

Salary Escalation Risk
The present value of the defined benefit pian is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future, Deviation in the rate of Increase of saiary
in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present valus of abligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Regulatory Risk
Gratuily benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Grauity Act, 1372 {=s amended from tme to time). There is a risk of change in regulations
requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuily of * 20 lakhs),

Investment Risk
The probabifity or kelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expectad return on any parbicelar investment.
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount Rates (per annum) 0.07 0.07
Expacted retirn on plan assets o.o7 0.0r
Salary growih rate (per annum) 0.07 0.07
Altriticn Rale S to 1% 5% 1o 1%

Indian Assured Lives Indizn Assured Lives
Mortafity Mortality Martafity
(2012-2014) Ult. (2012-2014) Uit

The estimales of fulure salary increase, considered in actuanal valuation, take sccount of inflation, seniarity, promotion 2nd other relevant faclars, such &s supply and
demand in the employment market.

(i} Sensiivity Analysis of Defined Benefit Chligation with reference to Key Assumptions Tin lakhs
Particulars

Discount Rate

Cne percent increaze 102.11 91.04

One percant decrease 125.93 1337

Salary Escalation Rate

One percent increase 125.61 113.30

(ne percent decrease 102.01 2051

Withdrawal Rate

Cina parcent increase 113,15 101.43

(Oinia parcent decrease 11297 101147

The graup has purchased an insurance policy o provide for payment of gratulty 1o the employees. Every year, the insurance group caries out @ fund valuation based on the
|latest employee data provided by the group. Any deficil in the assets arising a5 & result of such valuation is funded by the group.

The foliowing payments are expected contributions to the defined benafit plan in fislure years:




Expected(Undiscounted) Banefit Payments in Future Years
iProjections are for current members and their cusrently accumulated benefits)

Particulars

Year 1

Year

Yeard

‘Year d

Year §

Year fito 10

Total




Sakuma Exports Limitad
Nates forming part of the standalone financial statements
Note 42 Related party Disclosures

Stap-Down Subsidiaries

Key Manegemen] Personnel (KM}

Retalives of KMP

Companias in which Directors, KMP or their ralatives are interested

Hey Maragemant Parscanal (KMP)

{Ralatwas of KMP

Companies in which Directors, KMP or their relatives ane interested

The related parikes a5 per the lemms of Ind AS - 24, "Related Parly Distlosures”, Specified under seclion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with ruda 7 of Campanies (Accounls] Rules, 2015} are
disclosed balow -

Sekuma Exim OMCC {UAE) {Wheily Ownied Subsidiary)
Sakuma Exparts Pte LId (Singspors]  (Whally Owned Subsidiary)
Sakuma Impe: LI (London) {Whalty Chwned Subsidary)

Sakume Exports [Ghana) Limited(Subsidiary of Sekuma Expors Ple Lid)

Sakuma Exports [Tanzania) Private Limied {Subsidiany of Sakuma Exporis Ple Lid)

G Exirn FZE {Subsidiary of Sakuma Exim DMCC)

Mr. Saurabih Malhotra {Chairnan & Managing Director)

Mr. Raghe Styem  {Mon-Exsculive Director) (Uipto 31.02.2024)
Mr. O P Singal [Man-Executive Direclor) (Uplo 31.03 3034}
M. Shipea Malholra (Mori-Executive Director)

Wi, Vivek Grover [Nor-Execulive Dirscior)

W, Amiil Amist Shankar (Non-Executive Director) (woefl 25.03.2024)
Wer. Reabl Dixit {Man-Exsculive Director) (w.ef 28.03.2024)

M. Gunileshiir Simgh Sohal (Non-Execulive Dirscior)

M. Davesh Mishra (CFO)

M, Knyali Jobanpura (Company Secretary)

Mrs. Kusum Malholra
Mrs. Vanila Malhoira

Sakuma Finvest Private Limited

MK, System and Logistics Privata Limisd

Sakuma Infrastnucture and Realty Private Limited

C K K Retail Marl Limited (Frameely Known As C K K Exparts Privala Limited)
Marwar Consullancy Private Limited

Suknitl Traging LLP

LT Sagar Coaslal Transport Privase Limited

M5 Port Terming Private Limited

Kuma infra and Realty Privata Limited

Samavama Infra and Reatty Privatie Limiled

Mg Infra And Really Private Limitad

Sakuma Warehousing And Fackaging Private Limitsd
Prospesty Infre And Rty Privale Limited

izksm Infra And Really Privabe Limied

Kmsm infra And Realty Private Limited

Prosperty Real Eslate Solulions Privete Limiled
Youthsy Foundation

RPSU Infra & Raaty Pyl Lid

Sakiema Exim DMCC (UAE)
Sakuma Exports Ple Lid {Singapore)
Sakuma impax Lid {Landon)

Mr. Sawrabh Malhotra (Chalmnan & Managing Direcior)

Wr. Radhe Shyam  (Mon-Executive Direclor) (Upte 31.03.2024)
Mr. O F Singal {Mon-Executive Directon) (Upio 31.03.2024)
Ms. Shipra Maihotra  (Non-Execullve Director)

Mr. Vivak Grover  (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Amit Amist Shanker (Non-Exsculive Director)

Mr. Devesh Mishea (CFO)

M. Khyati Jobanpulra {Company Secratary)

Mrs. Kusum Mahotra

Sakuma Infrastructure and Reslty Private Limited
C K K Reteil Mart Limited {Fromly Known As C K K Exports Privala Limited)




Sakuma Exports Limited
Hetes forming part of the standalona financial statements
Note 42 Related party Disclosures
{ili) Detalls of related party fransactions during the year ended March 31, 2024
Sakuma Exim DMCC Salag 1.534.12 5,019.95
Sakuma Exim DMCC Advance recaived - 44,02
Sakuma Impex Lid Advance received 42531 -
Sakuma Exports Ple Lid Advance recaived 1,300,683
Sakuma Impex Lid Irrvestrnent in Subsidiary 011
Sakuma Exports Ple Lid Advance repaid 1,300.83
Key Managemeant Personnel (independent Directar's) Director's Sitting Fees 10,00 12.00
Hey Management Personnal Direclor’s Resmuneration 108.00 108,00
Salaries Bonug, Clher Benefits
ey Menagasnent Parsamicd incliing Conln P-F, Farily Pengion st HM e
Mz, Kisum Mahalra Rent paid 1071 10.71
Sakuma Infrastructure and Realty Privats Limited chics 5229 5229
. C K K Retal Mart Limited (Fromly Known Az C K K Exports Private Limited) Sales 3.158.65 2,565.52
C K K Retal Mart Limited (Fromly Known As C K K Exports Private Limited) Brokarane . 17,00
C K K Retail Mart Limited (Fromly Known As C K K Exports Privale Limiled) Purchase 1,887.40 74495 59
G K K Redail Mar Limited (Fromby Known As C ¥ ¥ Expons Private Limited) Recowery of Expenses
G K K Retail Man Limited (Framly Known As C K K Exports Private Limied) Interest on Linsecured Loan 3188
Sakurma Infrastructurs and Reslty Private Limited Interast on Unsscured Loan . 3219
C K K Retail Mari Limited {Fromly Known As C K K Exports Private Limied) Reimbursement of Exp 26.53
C K K Retail Man Limited (Framiy Known As C K K Exporis Private Limsed) Loan Taken - 1,530,100
C K K Retzil Mart Limited (Fromly Known As C K K Exponts Privale Limied) Loan Repaid 1,530.00
Saruma infrastruclure and Realty Privata Limited Laan Taken . 240186
Sakurma Infrastructure and Realty Private Limited Loan Repaid . 2451 85
(] Dutails of batances outstending of the Related Paries
Redationship Cutstanding Balance Asg at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Mrs. Kusim Malbota Security Deposit 15,30 15.30
Sakuma Infrastruchre and Realty Privale Limiled | Security Deposit T4.T0 T4.70
Sakuma Exim DMCC Trade Receivable 3945
K K Retail Mart Limited (Fromly Known As G K K Exports Private Limitad) Trade Receivable 1,009.96 -
. Subsgidiary Aivanca Recahved - 44.02
Sakuma Impex Lid Other Current Liabdities 425.21 -
Sakuma Impex Lid Ciher Financial Lisbilities 0.1
Terms and conditions of trangactions with related parties
The sales to and purchases from related parlles are made on lenms equivatent to those that prevail in am's length ransactions. Outstanding batanges al fe year-end are unsecwred and
interest freg. The company has not recorded any impairment of recaivatiles relfating to the amounts cwned by the relaled parties. This assessment is underiaken each financial year through
examining the financial pesition of the related party and the market in which related party exists.
The remunaration 1o the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for graluy as they are determined an an achuanial basis for the Company as a whole,
Managenal rermuneration is compuled &s per the provisions of section 157 of the Companies Ad, 2013,
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44 Falr Value Measurements

Tha fallcwing table shows the camying amounts and fair vaiues of nanclal asseds and fnancial lishiliies, inchuging thair levals in the fair value hararchy. It
does not include fair vale information for fnancial 2ssels and financial liskilities nal valued al fair value if the camying amount Is @ reasonable approdmaton of

Ihe fair value.
Tn lakhs
Carrying Value Fair Value
As at March 31, 2024 Mandatorlly at| *10° " | At amortised
TP dasignated Cost Total Level 1 | Lavel 2 | Level 3 Total
a3 such
Fingncig assals
Mon Current Azssts

Invastment in Subsidiades 2204054 | 220454 -

Inwestmant - Cihers . - - . - -

Loans, Advances end Deposits B7.36 - E7.36 87.36 B7.36

Cuarent Assels

Trade raceivablzs 2083281 | 2083281 .

Cash end cash equivalents 151575 | 151575 . B

Balancas with Banks ofher than ghove 28.58 28,58 . -

Investments-Olbars . . -

Leans, Advances ard Daposits 1,728.06 ] 1,728.05 -

Cihar financial assels . B7.78 67,78 - .
Totel Financial Assets 8736 2639761 | 2648497 B7.36 8736
Financial Liabililies _

Non-Cument Ligbililies

Barmawings E P ¥

Lease Liabiltias 3681 3681 36.91
Cumenl Lishiftas

Bomowings 885053 | 0BGR.53 - - - f

Trade payablas . - 163608 |  1.636.08 - - -

Leasa Liabdiles - - 22.84 2284 - . -

Citer financigd lablites . . P 3 . % %
Total Financial Liabilities - . 11,564.36 | 11,564,386 - 3851 - -

Fin lakhs
Carmying Value Fair Valus
As 3t March 31, 2023 Mandatarily at F."'T':E' Al amortised Total word | ovetz | uarets Tetai
1M e bt I B
Financizl assals
Non Curant Assats

Inwastrant in Subsidiaries 223453 | 228453 -

Investment - Cthers . 260 260 . -

Leang, Advances and Deposits 78.08 - 19.08 T9.08 10.08

Curranl Assels

Trede receivables 15,073.66 | 15,073,656

Cash ard cach equivaianis - 175234 1,752.34 - - -

Investment - Cthers 300,58 - 300.68 | 30058 00.68

Balances wilh Banks ather than sbove 8. 328,20 - - .

Loans, Advancas and Deposils - B51.23 B51.23 - -

Crher financial assels - - - . - X - -
Tedal Finangial Assels Ir4.7E 0082566 | 2041232 | 30068 | 7908 37978
Financial Liabilities

Mon-Cusment Lisbitties
Borowings - T6.52 76.52 - -
Lessa Liabiites - 3485 .65
Curment Lishiities
Barrowings g 157523 | 157523 -
Tradz pavables 406560 | 406568 - - .
Laa Liahiliss 46,57 45,57 46.57 - 46.57
Ceher financial lizbilties 76.71 7671 - -
Total Financial Liakililies - 5.875.37 587537 4557 A6.57

Cunng the reporting peniod ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, ihere have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair velue massuremenis.

The managemeni assessed that far values of cash and cash equivalents, Irede receivabies, irace payablas fess than 1 year, bark overdrafts and other cument

fnanclal aszals and Gabililies approximate thair camying amounts largaly due (o the shor-derm maturilies of these instruments.
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For the purpose of the Company capital managemsnt, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all cther equity resarves aftributable to the equity holders
of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value,

The Company manages ils capilal structure and makes adjusimanis in light of changes in economic conditions and the raquiremenis of the financial covananis. Ta
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, refum capital to sharehalders or issue new shares. The Company
manitors cagital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by tatal capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables, less cash and cash eguivalents.

.. n lakhs

Trade Payables 1,636.08

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents {1,515.75) 11,752.34)

Mat Debt 9,968.86 3.965.10

Total Equity 28,104.42 27.630.06
. Total Equity and Net Debt 39,083.28 31,585.16

Gearing Ratio 0.26 0.13

In order to achieve this overall cbjective, the Company's capital management, amongst ather things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-bearing toans and borrawings that define capital structure requirements. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing Inans and
baormowing in the current period.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years endad March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
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Risk Management Framework

The Compamy's principal financial labilfies. ofher than denvatives, comprisa fnans and bomowings, Irade and olher payables. Tha main purpose of these
fircancial izbiliies & to finance the Company's operafions. The Compery's principal financial assels inchude tade and ofer receivables, cash and cash
equivalents Mal derive drectly from Its cparatiors. The Company alsa enters inlp derivatie fransactions.

The Company’s financial risk activilies are governed by eppropriate palicies and procedures and thal fnancial risks an identified, measured &nd managed In
mnuuimwaawammandrucobmes.Mduh-mhaa:uumesfnrﬂskmnmmmamwmmswﬁmwmmﬂnm‘
the appropriale skils, experience and supendsion, The Boaed of Cirectors theough its risk manapament commities reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of thesa risks, which are summarised below.

The Company's has exposure o the Sofiowing risks artsing from financial instrumants:
(il Market Risk

(i) Commnodity Price Risk

(i} Credit Risic

(v} Liguidiy Risi;

v Exgessiva risk Concaniration

{i} Market Risk

Marked risk i Iha rigk that the fair vale of fusure cash fows of 2 fnandial insirument wil flucluate because of changes in markel prces. Marked risk comprises
three types of risic interest rate rigk, curmency risk and other prica risk. Financlal instruments. afiecled by marked risk include loans and bomowings, deposits,
rvestiments end derkvalive financial instruments.

The sensdivity analysis in the faliowing sections refaie to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
The sensifivity anaiysis have been prepared on the basis that the emaisnt of net debl, the ralis of fmed fo fioaling indzrest rates af the deblt and darvatives and
the propoetion of financial instruments in foreign cumences are all conglant and on the basis of hedge designasions in place at March 31, 2024,

The falowing assumplions have been made in calculating the sensithity analysis:

Tha sensitivy of the relevant profil o less tem is the effect of the assumed changes in respsciive markel risks. This is bassd on the financial awets and
Enancial kabiilies held &t March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 incloding the effect of hedge accounting.

Imferest Rata Risk

Imierest rate rigk ks the nsk iat the fer vala or fulwe cash fiows of a financial Instrument will Nuclate because of changas in markst interes! rates. The
Company's exposure 12 e risk of changes in markal inberest rates relates primardy to the Company's long-lerm debil obiligatians with Soating inerest rates.

The Company manages ils inferest rate risk by having & shorl serm werking capiial laares which are: raviewad an yearly basis, The folowing tabke provides aj
break-up of Company's fived and foaling rate borowing:

Tin lakhs .

Flasting ra borosings 358853 45758
Total Bomowings 9.558.53 1,651.75

Interest rate sensitivity

Thi folcwing table demonstrates the sensiivily to @ reasonably possble changs in interest rtes on that portion of foans and barrtrwings affected, after the
impact of hedge accounting. With afl ofher variables beld constant, the Company’s profit befora tax ks afecied through the impact on foating rate borowings, a3
falicrws:

Tin lakhs

9,858.53 | - 100 bps 58659860

March 31, 2023

1.497.58 | +- 100 bps 14.96/14.98

|Mete: The abave analysis is prepared for floatng rale fablilies assuming the amount of the Liabifiy culslanding 21 the end of the reporing Pariod was|
cutstanding for fhe whole year,

| The assumad mowement in basis painls for the interesd rale sansifivity analys's s based an the currenlly obsanvable markal enviranmeant, showing & skynificantly
highear valatiity than in prior years

Derfvatives dasignated as hedging instrumants

The Company uses derivative fnancial instruments such as foreign curmency fanward contracts % hedge foreign curmancy risk arising from Aulue ransackons in
respact of which firm commilments are mate or which are highly probable forecast iransacions. Al thess instruments ane designated as hedging nsluments
and Ihe necissary documentation for the same i made a3 per Ind A% 104,

Cash fiow hedpges - Foreign currency Risk

Fomeign exchange forward caniracts measwed at ki value Trough OCI are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hadges of recagrized purchase
payahies. commifled future purchases, recogrized sales receivables, farecast sales in US dollar, The forecas! sales ransaclions ane highty probabie.

The foreign exchange farward conlract balances vary with the level of expecied foreign currency sales and purchases and changes in fanaign axchange forward|
raies.
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FCY Receivablas 185,64 365,75

FCY Payables {B5,78) {7713}

Mgl FCY Riteivables / (Payables) 118.88 288,62

Financial Hedge 118,68 #6862

Unhasdiped Faraign Currancy Expasure . %
Foreign currency sensitivity

Tne: following lables: demansirate the sensiivity to @ reasonably poszsible chenge In USD rates, with &l olher varlables heid conslant. The impact on tha
Company's prafil belore ax is tue to changes in tha fair value of monetary assals &nd liabilties.

Recognized net recelvables J (payables) 4101 =+ 0,000 -0.00
March 31, 2023
Recognizad ned racaivables ! [payables) +101 "+ 0,00 0,00

In management’s opinian, the sensiivily Enalysis &5 unrepresentadve of the inherent foreign exchange risk becausa tha exposure al e end of i reparing
period does nat reflect the expasure during the year,

(i} Commodity Price Risk
The Company is affected by te price voiatlity of cestain commodities. 1t aperating acihilies require tha ongoing purchase of ol and ather ragded commodities.

Due o ihe sigrificantly incrassed volatifty of the prices of the cammodities, the Company alsa entared int various derivative condracts.
The Company's Board of Directors has davelopad and enacted a sk manapement sirategy regandig commodity prica risk and its mitigation

(i} Crodit Risk

(Credil risk i Ehe tisk that counerparty will not mest &5 obiigations under 2 financial instrumen or cusiomer contract, leading |0 3 fnancial loss, Tha Company &
expased o credit risk fom #5 operating acivilies Jprimarily irade recewabies) and from its fnancing activities, Including depasits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchanoe ransactions and ather fmancial instrumants.

Trade raceivablas

Customer credit nsk is managed by Me management subject (o the Company's established poicy, procedunes and conlral relasng o custamer oredi risk
|management. Trade recaivables are non-nigrest bearing. Generally the company operates on advance against defivery arder principle excapt for menchan|
Iraca Irénsactions wherein the saies is execuied on oredil tems up to six manths. Also, Export customers are secured against LeSiar of Credi, bank ou

and payments aganst documents. Credil sk on recevables is alse mitigaled by secwing the same against secury deposil, lalter of credif and ecvance
payment.

An impainment analysis & performed al each reporting date on an individual basis for major clienss. The Compary has no canceniration of oradit risk 25 the
customer basa ks witely distibuled both econoemically and peographically

-M-___ _ Tin lakhs

.._- 19,787.02 14,420.45

&1 - 180 days 489,85 584
181 - 270 days 1073 -
270 - 355 days - -
Mara than 365 days AG24T T
84572 15,114.20
Other financial assots and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial imsfutions is managad by the Company's treasury depariment in accordance wilh the Company's policy.
Irvesiments of surpius fungs ane mada anly with approved countarparties and wilin credit limits assigned to each counlesparty. Countarparty creds limils are
reviewed by the Company's Board of Directars on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout e vear subject to approval as per the lavasimant policy,
Thi lmits ane set o minimise tha concantration of risks end tharafore mitigate financial nss through courderparty's potential faiuwe 1o make paymeants.

{iv) Liquidity Risk

Liguidity ris< is defined as the risk (hat tha Company will nat be eble o setfe or meet its obligafions on fime, or at & reasonable price. Prudent lguidity risk]
management Impies mainlaining sufficient cash and marketable securties and the avallablity of funcing raugh an adequale amaunt of committed cradit]
faciities i meet abligations when due. The Company prepares cash flow on & daily basls o moniar fguidity. Any shaortfal is funded oul of shoet ferm loans, Anyl
SUrplUs is inviested In dguid mulua funds and thort lerm bank dapogils. The table below summarises the masurty profie of the Company's Enancial liakilbes
basad on contractyal undiscounted paymants.
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%ﬂn ag af March 31, 2024 7 in lakhs
Financial Asssats
Nom-Current Assets
Investment In Subsidiaries 0.1 . 222453 22484
Investment - Dihers - - . .
Leans, Advances and Deposits . B7.36 - B7.35
Current Assets .
Trade receivables 20,384.25 AGLAT . npdaTz
Cash and cash equivalents 1,515,758 . - 151575
Balances with Banks ather than abol 2855 . . I8.58
Investment - Cihers - .
Loans, Advances and Deposits 1,728.05 . . 1.728.05
Other financial assets E7.78 . . E7.78
Total Financial Assels 23,724.52 545,83 21.224.53 25 458,85
Financlal Liabllites
Men-Current Liabilities
Barrawings - - - .
Laasa Liabdities 3691 - M
Current Liabilities .
Barrowings 0.868.53 . . 5.808.53
Trade payables 157201 415 56.91 1.536.08
Ciher financial lizbdlities 1284 - = 2284
Tetal Financial Liabilities 11,500,208 418 53.91 11,564.36
Liguidity exposure ag at March 31, 2023 _ T in lakhs
[ Bl e e e [ = e B BT
Financial Assels -
Naon-Currand Assals
Invesimant in Subsidiates = = 2,624.53 222453
Irvesimant - Crhers - 260 260
Loans, Advancas and Depasils - T9.08 - 74.08
Cument Aszals 3
Trade recaivables 14,736,249 maw - 15.073.66
Cash ano cash equivalents 1,752,354 . - 1,752.34
Balances with Banks ofher than above 328.20 . . 328.20
Currenl Azsels 30068
Leans, Advances and Deposits B51.23 - . i51.23
Other Snancid assels . - - -
Tolal Financial Assats 17.768.74 AT6AS 223713 mnanm
Financial Lizbiilies
Hon-Currenl Lsabfilies
Barrowings - 752 - T6.52
Lease Liablilies * .65 - M85
Currend Lizhiilies
Banoraings 157523 . - 1.575.23
Trads payabies 963,80 250 - 4,006.06
Ceher financial Eabiities TET a - JET
Tatal Financlal Liabliities 5635.74 133.43 - 5,168.17
(v} Excessive risk Concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counderparties are engaged in similar business acthities, or activilies in the same geographical ragion, of have econcmic
fealures that would cause thelr abikty %o meed condractual cbigalions o be similarly aflected by changes in economic, political o ather condifions. Carcentrations
indicate the reialive sensitivity of the Company's performance 1 developments alfecting a particular industry,
In-crder (o 2void excossve concantrations of risk, the Group's polisies and procedures include speciic guidiines o focus on e mainlenance of 3 diversified
portiio. Identified concentrafions of credit risks are conirglied and managed accordingly. Sefectve hedging i used wilthin the Group o manzge risk|
concentratians at bath the ralationship and indusiry kevels.
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1. Recent Pronouncements:
Minislry of Corporate Affairs (MCAT) nolifies new standands of amendments o tne exssting standards under Comparies (fndien Accounting Standards) Rules as
zsued from time o time. Far he yea andad 35t March, 2024, MCA has nol nolified ary new standards or amendmens Lo the exisfing standards.

2. Ko funcs have been advanced or kanad or Invested (either from borrowed furvds ¢ share premium or any clber sources or kind of funds) by the Hedging
Company of its Subsidiary Company Incoparated In India to of in any other person(z) or entity(ies), Including foreign enfities (Tnermedianies”) with the
Lnderslanding. whesher recorded in wriling or alherwise, that Ihe Inlermediary shall lend of invest in party identified by ar on behalf of the Halding Company ar
{s Subsidiary Company incorparated in India (UMimate Benefcianes), The Holding Company of ils Subsidiary Company incarporated in India has not received
any fund fram any party(s) (Furding Party} with the understanding that she Cempany shall whather, diractly or Indinecly lend or Invest in alher pessons or enliies
idantfied by or on bahatf of the Company ("Ullimale Baneficiarias”) o provide any guaranise, securty or the ke an behaf of the Ullimate Beneficiares.

3. Details of Benami property: Mo peocesdings have been Iniliated or are perding against he Company for holding any Benami proparty under ihe Banami
Transacions (Prohitilion) Act, 1988 (45 of 1998) and the rules made theneundar

4. Transactions with Struck off Companies: Mg bansactians have been camied cul during the finarcial year 202224 with Struck oft Cempanies under seclion
248 of the Companies Act, 2013 by MCA.

5. Compliance with numbser of layers of companies: The Company has compiied wilh the number of byers prescribed dause (87) of section 2 of tha Acl
read with Companizs (Restiction an number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

G Detaits of erypto cumency or virtual currency: The Compary has nof traded or invested i eryple cumency of wirual cumengy during the currant ar
PYENIOUS waar,

7. Undisclosed income: There is no inpoma sumendared or disclosed 2 income during e curent ar previous year in the tax assassments urder b Income
Tax Act, 1961, that has nat been recorded in e books of Gccounl,

9. The Figures have been raunded off 1o the nearest lakhs of Rupess upm tea decmal Fiaces,

9. Pravious Years Figures have been regrouped | reamanged where e necessary 1o make them Comgarabie with the Cument year Figuras as per revised
Schedule 1l requiremants
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